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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
------------------------------x 

UNITED STATES OF Alv'.!ERICA, 

V. 

ERIC S. LIPKIN, 

Defendant. 

------------------------------x 

Before: 

New York, N.Y. 

S3 10 Cr. 228 (LTS) 

June 6, 2011 
11:11 a.m. 

HON. LAURA TAYLOR SWAIN, 

APPEARANCES 

PREET BHARARA 
United States Attorney for the 
Southern District of New York 

BY: JULIAN MOORE 
LISA A. BARONI 
MATTHEW SCHWARTZ 
Assistant United States Attorneys 

JA1v'.!ES K. FILAN 
Attorney for Defendant 

- also present -

SA Paul Takla, FBI 
SA Greg Hagarty, FBI 

District Judge 

Natasha Ram~sar, Pretrial Services Officer 
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THE CLERK: I call the case, United States of America 

versus Eric Lipkin. 

MR. MOORE: Good morning, your Honor. Julian Moore 

for the government. With me are my colleagues Lisa Baroni and 

Matthew Schwartz, of the U.S. Attorney's office, along with 

Special Agents Greg Hagarty and Paul Takla, of the FBI, and 

Natasha Ramesar of the United States Pretrial Services. 

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Moore, Ms. Baroni and 

Mr. Schwartz, Agent Hagarty, Agent Takla, and Officer Ramesar. 

MR. FILAN: Good morning, your Honor. James K. Filan, 

counsel on behalf of Mr. Lipkin, who is seated at the table 

next to me. 

THE COURT: Good morning, Mr. Filan. Good morning, 

Mr. Lipkin. 

today. 

And, again, good morning all of you who have attended 

Is this Mr. Lipkin 1 s first appearance? 

MR. FILAN: Yes, it is, your Honor. 

THE COURT: All right. Well, then, let's deal with 

the advice of rights matters first. 

Mr. Lipkin, would you please stand. 

Please state your full name. 

THE DEFENDANT: Eric Lipkin. 

THE COURT: How old are you, sir? 

THE DEFENDANT: 37. 
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THE COURT: I will now explain certain rights that you 

have under the Constitution of the United States. 

You have the right to remain silent. You need not 

make any statement. Even if you have already made statements 

to the authorities, you need not make any additional 

statements. Any statements that you do make can be used 

against you. 

Do you understand these rights? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do. 

THE COURT: You have the right to be released either 

conditionally or unconditionally pending trial unless I find 

that there are no conditions that would reasonably assure your 

presence at future court hearings and the safety of the 

community. If the government were to ask me to detain you 

pending trial, you are entitled to a prompt hearing on whether 

such conditions exist. 

Do you understand this right? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do. 

THE COURT: Are you a citizen of the United States? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I am. 

THE COURT: You have the right to be represented by an 

attorney today and at all future proceedings in this case, and 

if you are unable to afford an attorney, I will appoint an 

attorney to represent you. Do you understand these rights? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do. 
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THE COURT: Do you wish to have and are you·able·to 

obtain and afford counsel on your own? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I am. 

THE COURT: Have you retained Mr. Filan to represent 

you? 

THE DEFENDANT: I have. 

THE COURT: And it is your desire to proceed in these 

matters with Mr. Filan as your retained counsel? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: And I am informed that Mr. Filan 

informed that Mr. Lipkin has an application to waive indictment 

and enter a guilty plea to the six-count Superseding 

Information that is labeled S3 10 Criminal 228. 

Is that correct? 

MR. FILAN: That is correct, your Honor. 

THE COURT: And this plea is pursuant to the agreement 

that has been marked as Government Exhibit 1, and is at defense 

table now? 

MR. FILAN: That is correct, your Honor. 

THE COURT: And you and Mr. Lipkin have also reviewed 

and signed the advice of rights form that has been marked as 

Court Exhibit 1. 

MR. FILAN: We have, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Thank you. I have a question for 

Mr. Moore at this point. 
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Mr. Moore, would you please make a statement for the 

record as to the government's victim notification activities in 

connection with this matter. I note that the courtroom is full 

and that I signed an order requiring certain_ information be 

posted on the website, but perhaps you can bring us up to date. 

MR. MOORE: Yes, your Honor. 

Last week we issued a letter to your attention 

requesting that we make public that this proceeding will be 

occurring today, namely, that Mr. Lipkin will be pleading to a 

superseding S3 Information to the counts, which we will go 

through today. We also requested that we be able to post this 

announcement on the U.S. Attorney's Madoff website. 

Your Honor kindly ordered -- so ordered that letter on 

Thursday, and those conditions did happen as of that date. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

Now, I had received a call indicating that there was 

one victim who wished to be heard today. This morning we 

received a further message that that person is unable to attend 

court today. 

Is the government aware of any victims who are here 

present today who wish to be heard? 

MR. MOORE: We are not, your Honor. However, we are 

aware that your deputy, Ms. Ng, did make a sign-up sheet 

available, but we do not believe anyone signed that sheet. 

THE COURT: It's my understanding that no one has 
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signed on the sheet. 

Is there anyone here who does wish to be heard? 

(Pause) 

All right. We will proceed, then. 

6 

Mr. Lipkin, before I accept your Waiver of Indictment 

and your guilty plea, there are a number of questions that I 

must ask you while you are under oath to assure that it is a 

valid waiver and plea. At times I may cover a point more than 

once, and I may cover matters that were also addressed in the 

advice of rights form that you have seen. But if I do so, that 

is because it is very important that you understand what is 

happening here today. 

If you don't understand something that I ask you, 

please say so and I will reword the question or you may speak 

with your attorney. Do you understand that? 

oath. 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Ms. Ng, would you please administer the 

THE CLERK: Please raise your right hand. 

(The defendant was sworn) 

THE COURT: Would you please state your full name for 

the record. 

THE DEFENDANT: Eric Scott Lipkin. 

THE COURT: Mr. Lipkin, do you understand that you 

have solemnly promised to tell the truth, and that if you 
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answer any of my questions falsely, your false or untrue 

answers may later be used against you in another prosecution 

for perjury or making a false statement? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

7 

THE COURT: You can be seated for the next portion of 

the proceeding. 

You indicated that your age is 37, is that correct? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: How.far did you go in school? 

THE DEFENDANT: I graduated from Ramapo College. 

THE COURT: In what field of study? 

THE DEFENDANT: Economics. I also have an associates 

degree in finance. 

THE COURT: Are you able to speak, read and understand 

the English language well? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: And you are a citizen of the United 

States? 

THE DEFENDANT: I am. 

THE COURT: Are you now or have you recently been 

under the care of a doctor or a psychiatrist? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. 

THE COURT: Have you ever been treated or hospitalized 

for any mental illness or for any type of addiction, including 

drug or alcohol addiction? 
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(212) 805-0300 

10-05286-smb    Doc 193-10    Filed 12/21/18    Entered 12/21/18 18:30:13    Exhibit 6   
 Pg 8 of 53



1 

2· 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7· 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

( 25 
\ 

166dlipp 
PLEA 

THE DEFENDANT: No. 

THE COURT: Have you ever been addicted to any drugs 

or alcohol? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. 

THE COURT: In the past 24 hours, have you taken any 

drugs, medicine, or pills, or have you drunk any alcohol? 

today? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. 

THE COURT: Is your mind clear today? 

THE DEFENDANT: It is. 

THE COURT: Are you feeling well physically today? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Are you represented by a lawyer here 

THE DEFENDANT: I am. 

THE COURT: What is your attorney's name? 

THE DEFENDANT: James Filan. 

THE COURT: Mr. Filan, Mr. Moore, does either of you 

have any doubt as to Mr. Lipkin's competence to waive 

indictment and enter a plea at this time? 

MR. MOORE: No, your Honor. 

MR. FILAN: r have no knowledge. He should be able 

to, yes, your Honor. 

THE COURT: Thank you. You have no knowledge of any 

reason for me --

MR. FILAN: I have no reason to believe that he is 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. 
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unable to enter a plea. I 1 m sorry. 

THE COURT: Thank you. 

Mr. Lipkin, your attorney has informed me that you 

wish to waive indictment and enter a plea of guilty to an 

information. Do you wish to waive indictment and enter a 

guilty plea? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Have you fully discussed your case with 

your attorney, including the charges to which you intend to 

plead guilty and any possible defenses you may have to those 

charges? 

THE DEFENDANT: I have. 

9 

THE COURT: Have you and your attorney also discussed 

the consequences of entering a guilty plea? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, we have. 

THE COURT: Are you satisfied with your attorney and 

his representation of you? 

THE DEFENDANT: I am. 

THE COURT: On the basis of Mr. Lipkin 1 s responses to 

my questions and my observations of his demeanor, I find that 

he is fully competent to enter an informed plea at this time 

and to waive indictment. 

Before I accept your plea, sir, I am going to ask you 

many so more questions. These questions are intended to 

satisfy the Court that you wish to plead guilty because you are 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. 
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in fact guilty and that you fully understand your rights and 

the consequences of your plea. I am now going to describe to 

you certain rights that you have under the Constitution and 

laws of the United States. You will be giving up these rights 

if you enter a guilty plea. Please listen carefully. If you 

do not understand something that I'm saying or describing, stop 

me and I or your attorney will explain it more fully. 

Under the Constitution and laws of the United States, 

you have the right to a speedy and public trial by a jury on 

the charges against you that are set out in the Information. 

Do you understand that. 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that you have the right 

to plead not guilty and to continue to plead not guilty? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: If there were a trial, you would be 

presumed innocent and the government would be required to prove 

you guilty by competent evidence and beyond a reasonable doubt. 

You would not have to prove that you were innocent at a trial. 

Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: If there were a trial, a jury composed of 

12 people selected from this district would have to agree 

unanimously in order to find you guilty. Do you understand 

that? 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. 
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THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: If there were a trial, and at all stages 

leading up to it, you would have the right to be represented by 

an attorney, and if you could not afford one, an attorney would 

be provided to you free of cost. Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: If there were a trial, you would have the 

right to see and hear all of the witnesses against you and your 

attorney could cross-examine them. You would also have the 

right to have your attorney object to the government1 s evidence 

and offer evidence on your behalf, if you so desired. In 

addition, you would have the right to have witnesses required 

to come to court to testify in your defense, and you would have 

the right to testify yourself but you would not be required to 

testify. 

Do you understand all of that? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that if there were a 

trial and you decided not to testify, no adverse inference 

could be drawn against you based on your decision not to 

testify? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that if you were 

convicted at a trial, you would have the right to appeal that 

verdict? 

SOUTHERN DISTRICT REPORTERS, P.C. 
(212) 805-0300 

10-05286-smb    Doc 193-10    Filed 12/21/18    Entered 12/21/18 18:30:13    Exhibit 6   
 Pg 12 of 53



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

166dlipp 
PLEA 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand each and every one of 

these rights that I've asked you about? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Do you have any questions about any of 

these rights? 

THE DEFENDANT: No, I do not. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that by entering a 

guilty plea today you will be giving up each and every one of 

these rights? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Do you also understand that you will be 

giving up any possible claim that your constitutional rights 

may have been violated? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: And do you understand that you will have 

no trial if you plead guilty? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that by entering a 

12 

. guilty plea, you will also have to give up your right not to 

incriminate yourself because I will ask you questions about 

what you did in order to satisfy myself that you are guilty as 

charged and you will have to admit and acknowledge your guilt? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that you can change your 
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mind right now and refuse to enter a plea of guilty? You do 

not have to enter this plea if you do not want to for any 

reason. Do you understand this fully? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you still wish to plead guilty? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

13 

THE COURT: The document that contains the charges to 

which you've indicated you wish to plead guilty is called an 

information. It has been issued by the United States Attorney. 

You have a constitutional right to be charged by an indictment 

rather than an information. An indictment would be a charge 

issued from the grand jury. Do you understand that? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Mr. Filan, would you please show 

Mr. Lipkin the Waiver of Indictment form. 

(Pause) 

Mr. Lipkin, have you signed this Waiver of Indictment? 

THE DEFENDANT: I have. 

THE COURT: Did you read it before you signed it? 

THE DEFENDANT: I did. 

THE COURT: You did discuss it with your attorney 

before you signed it? 

it? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Did you understand it before you signed 
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I did. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that if you do not waive 

indictment, if the government wished to prosecute you on these 

particular charges that are in the Information, the government 

would have to present the case to the grand jury, which might 

or might not indict you on those charges? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT:_ Do you understand that you are under no 

obligation to waive indictment? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes .. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that by waiving 

indictment, you are giving up your right to have the case 

presented to the grand jury? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand what a grand jury is? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Did anyone make any threats or promises to 

get you to waive indictment? 

THE DEFENDANT: No, they did not. 

THE COURT: Have you seen a copy of the Third 

Superseding Information that has the word 11 Information11 at the 

top and the number S3 10 Cr. 228 on it? 

THE DEFENDANT: I did. 

THE COURT: Have you read it? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 
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THE ·COURT: Have you discussed it with your attorney? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, we have. 

THE COURT: Do you understand the charges against you 

that are detailed in the Information? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: If you would like, I can read the 

Information out loud now here in court to you. Do you want me 

to read it out loud to you? 

THE DEFENDANT: No. 

THE COURT: I find that Mr. Li~kin's Waiver of 

Indictment is knowing and voluntary. I accept it and I so 

order it. 

Mr. Lipkin, do you understand that Count One of the 

Superseding Information charges you with violating Section 371 

of Title 18 of the United States Code by participating in a 

conspiracy to, one, violate 15 United States Code, Sections 

78q(a) and 78ff and Title 17 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, Section 240.17a-3 by falsifying books and records 

of a broker-dealer, as well as conspiring to violate Title 15 

of the United States Code, Sections 80b-4 and sob-17 and 17 

C.F.R., Section 275.204-2 by falsifying books and records of an 

investment advisor, and also conspiring to violate Title 18 of 

the United States Code, Sections 1027 and 2 by falsifying 

statements to facilitate the theft concerning ERISA, that being 

the Employee Retirement Income Security Act? 
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THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

16 

THE COURT: Do you understand that Count Two of the 

Superseding Information charges you with violating Title 18 of 

the United States Code, Section 371 by participating in a 

conspiracy to violate Title 18, Section 1344, by defrauding a 

financial institution, the deposits of which were then insured 

by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that Count Three of the 

Superseding Information charges you with falsifying books and 

records of a broker-dealer, in violation of 15 United States 

Code, Sections 78q(a) and 78ff; 17 of the Code of Federal 

Regulations, Section 240.17a-3; and Title 18 of the United 

States Code, Section 2? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that Count Four of the 

Superseding Information charges you with falsifying books and 

records of an investment advisor, in violation of Title 15 of 

the United States Code, Sections 80b-4 and 80b-17; 17 Code of 

Federal Regulations, Section 275.204-2; and Title 18 of the 

United States Code, Section 2? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that Count Five of the 

Superseding Information charges you with making false 

statements to facilitate a theft concerning ERISA, in violation 
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of 18 United States Code, Sections 1027 and 2? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: And do you understand that Count Six of 

the Superseding Information charges you with committing bank 

fraud with respect to a federally insured bank, in violation of 

Title 18 of the United States Code, Sections 1344 and 2? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that the government 

would have to prove each and every part or element of each.of 

· these charges-beyond a reasonable doubt at trial if you did not 

plead guilty? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Mr. Moore, would you please explain for 

the record the elements that the government would have to prove 

if you were to go to trial on these charges? 

MR. MOORE: Certainly, your Honor. 

With regard to Counts One and Two, the conspiracy 

counts, in order to prove the crime of conspiracy, the 

government must establish each of the following elements beyond 

a reasonable doubt: 

First, that the conspiracy charged in the Information 

existed, in other words, that there was in fact an agreement or 

understanding to violate the laws of the United States; 

Second, your Honor, that the defendant knowingly, 

willingly and voluntarily became a member of the conspiracy 
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charged; 

And, third, that any one of the conspirators, not 

necessarily the defendant, knowingly committed at least one 

overt act in the Southern District of New York in furtherance 

of the conspiracy during the life of that conspiracy. 

18 

With regard to Count Three, your Honor, falsifying 

broker-dealer books and records, in order to prove this crime, 

the government must prove beyond a reasonable doubt the 

following elements: 

First, that at the time of the alleged offense, 

Bernard L. Madoff Investment Securities, otherwise known as 

11 BLMIS, 11 was a registered broker; 

Second, that BLMIS failed to make and keep certain 

accurate records, as required under the SECTS rules and 

regulations; 

Third, that the defendant aided and abetted BLMIST 

failure to make and keep accurate records; and 

Fourth, that the defendant acted knowingly and 

willfully. 

With regard to Count Four, your Honor, falsifying 

books and records of an investment advisor, the government must 

prove beyond a reasonable doubt: 

First, that at the time of the alleged offense BLMIS 

was an investment advisor; second, that BLMIS failed to make 

and keep certain accurate records as required under the SECTs 
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· rules and regulations; third, that the defendant aided and 

abetted BLMIS' failure to make and keep accurate records; 

fourth, that the defendant acted knowingly and willfully; and, 

fifth, the offense involved the use of the mails and means and 

instrumentalities of interstate commerce. 

With regard to Count Five, falsifying statements to 

facilitate a theft concerning ERISA, in order to prove this 

crime the government must demonstrate beyond a reasonable doubt 

that, first, that at the time of the alleged offense, the 

defendant made a false statement; second, that the defendant 

knew the statement to be false; and, third, that the defendant 

made a false statement in a document required by ERISA. 

Finally, your Honor, with regard to Count Six, bank 

fraud, in order to prove this crime beyond a reasonable doubt, 

the government must demonstrate, first, that at the time of the 

alleged offense the defendant executed or attempted execute a 

scheme or artifice to defraud a bank,. or that the defendant 

execute or attempted to execute a scheme or artifice to obtain 

money owned by or under the custody or control of that bank by 

means of false or fraudulent pretense, representations or 

promises; second, your Honor, the defendant engaged in a scheme 

or artifice knowingly and willfully and with the specific 

intent to defraud the bank; and, third, that the bank involved 

was a federally chartered or insured financial institution. 

THE COURT: . Thank you. 
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Mr. Lipkin, do you understand the matters that the 

government would have to prove if you did not plead guilty? 

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, I do. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that the maximum 

possible penalty for the crime with which you are charged in 

Count One is five years of imprisonment, plus a fine of the 

greatest of $250,000, twice the gain resulting from the offense 

or twice the loss to other people resulting from the offense, 

plus a $100 special assessment, plus full restitution to all 

persons injured as a result of your criminal conduct, plus 

three years of supervised release after your term of 

imprisonment? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that the maximum 

possible penalty for the crime with which you are charged in 

Count Two is five years of imprisonment, plus a fine of the 

greatest of $250,000, twice the gain resulting from the offense 

or twice the loss to other people resulting from the offense, 

plus a $100 special assessment, plus full restitution to all 

persons injured as a result of your criminal conduct, plus 

three years of supervised release after your term of 

imprisonment? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Do-you understand that the maximum 

possible penalty for the crime with which you are charged in 
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Count Three is 20 years of imprisonment, plus a fine of the 

greatest of $5 million, twice the gain resulting from the 

offense or twice the loss to other people resulting from the 

offense, plus a $100 special assessment, plus full restitution 

to all persons injured as a result of your criminal conduct, 

plus three years .of supervised release after your term of 

imprisonment? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that the maximum 

possible penalty for the crime with which you are charged in 

Count Four is five years of imprisonment, plus a fine of the 

greatest of $250,000, twice the gain resulting from the offense 

or twice the loss to other people resulting from the offense, 

plus a $100 special assessment, plus full restitution to all 

persons injured as a result of your criminal conduct, plus 

three years of supervised release after your term of 

imprisonment? 

THE DEFENDANT: I do. 

THE COURT: Do you understand that the maximum 

possible penalty for the crime with which you are charged in 

Count Five is five years of imprisonment, plus a fine of the 

greatest of $250,000, twice the gain resulting from the offense 

or twice the loss to other people resulting from the offense, 

plus a $100 special assessment, plus full restitution to all 

persons injured as a result of your criminal conduct, plus 
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